From: Hood. Tanya

To: Ernie.Kapopoulos@duke-energy.com

Cc: Duc. Joshua Brian; Vaughan, Jordan L; Grzeck, Lee

Subject: H.B. Robinson Steam Electric Plant - Request for Additional Information Regarding License Amendment Request
to Adopt TSTF-577, Revision 1 (EPID L-2021-LLA-0222)

Date: Friday, March 18, 2022 1:30:00 PM

Attachments: Robinson RAIs for TSTF-577.pdf

SUBJECT: H.B. ROBINSON STEAM ELECTRIC PLANT, UNIT 2 - REQUEST FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING LICENSE AMENDMENT
REQUEST TO REVISE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS TO ADOPT TSTF-
577, “REVISED FREQUENCIES FOR STEAM GENERATOR TUBE
INSPECTIONS” (EPID L-2021-LLA-0222)

Dear Mr. Kapopoulos, Jr.,

By letter dated December 9, 2021, as supplemented by letter dated January 6, 2022
(Agencywide Documents Access and Management System Accession No. ML21343A047
and ML22006A240, respectively), Duke Energy Progress, LLC (the licensee) submitted a
license amendment request (LAR) to amend the Technical Specifications (TSs) for the H.B.
Robinson Steam Electric Plant, Unit No. 2 (Robinson). The proposed amendment would
adopt Technical Specifications Task Force (TSTF) Traveler TSTF 577, Revision 1,
“Revised Frequencies for Steam Generator Tube Inspections.”

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission staff has reviewed the licensee’s submittal and
determined that additional information is required in order to complete the review. The
requested additional information is attached. The draft questions were sent to Mr. Jordan
Vaughan of your staff to ensure that they were understandable, the regulatory basis for the
guestions was clear, and to determine if the information was previously docketed. Based
on insight from the discussion it was determined that the response will be provided by
April 29, 2022.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (301) 415-1387 or Tanya.Hood@nrc.gov.
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REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
FOR REVIEW OF LICENSE AMENDMENT REQUEST TO ADOPT TECHNICAL
SPECIFICATION TASK FORCE (TSTF)-577
DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS, LLC
H. B. ROBINSON STEAM ELECTRIC PLANT, UNIT 2
DOCKET NO. 50-261
EPID: L-2021-LLA-0222

By letter dated December 9, 2021, as supplemented by letter dated January 6, 2022
(Agencywide Documents Access and Management System Accession No. ML21343A047 and
ML22006A240, respectively), Duke Energy Progress, LLC (the licensee) submitted a license
amendment request for H.B. Robinson Steam Electric Plant, Unit No. 2 (Robinson). The
proposed amendment would adopt Technical Specifications Task Force (TSTF) Traveler
TSTF 577, Revision 1, “Revised Frequencies for Steam Generator Tube Inspections” (ADAMS
Accession No. ML21060B434).

Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR) Part 50, “Domestic Licensing of
Production and Utilization Facilities,” Section 50.36, “Technical specifications,” establishes the
regulatory requirements related to the content of Technical Specifications (TSs). Section
50.36(c)(5), “Administrative Controls,” states in part, that “[a]dministrative controls are the
provisions relating to organization and management, procedures, recordkeeping, review and
audit, and reporting necessary to assure operation of the facility in a safe manner.” All
pressurized water reactors have TSs according to 10 CFR 50.36 that include a steam generator
(SG) Program with specific criteria for the structural and leakage integrity, repair, and inspection
of SG tubes. At Robinson, programs established by the licensee, including the SG Program,
are listed in the administrative controls section of the TS to operate the facility in a safe manner.

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission staff has reviewed the information submitted by the
licensee and determined that additional information is required to complete its review. The
specific request for additional information is addressed below.

RAI-1

Discuss in greater detail how potential cracking at tube support plates (TSPs) was analyzed,
including:

a. Did the analysis consider cracking only in the high stress tubes or a greater
subpopulation of tubes? If tubes that were inspected with the bobbin probe only
were included in the subpopulation of potentially susceptible tubes, please
discuss how these tubes were analyzed and combined with those tubes
inspected with a combination bobbin probe/array probe to develop the overall
probability of burst and probability of leakage.





b. Provide more details about how the undetected total flaw length distribution was
derived from industry experience for potential axial outside diameter stress
corrosion at the expansion transition (ODSCC) at the TSP.

c. Compare the tube support plate deposits at Robinson relative to the Duke unit
that experienced cracking in a few non-high stress tubes in 2019 near the top of
a TSP. Discuss the likelihood of similar tube cracking at Robinson based on
deposit amounts or composition.

d. Provide the 95" percentile probability of detection value for the bobbin probe and
the combined bobbin-array probe.

RAI-2

During Refueling Outage 32 (RO32), 20 new foreign object wear indications were detected. A
significant number of these indications occurred at support plates with the largest measured at
30-31 percent through wall (TW). No possible loose part signals were detected in any of the
tubes with foreign object wear. In addition, four previous indications of foreign object wear
without associated possible loose part signals exhibited 1-3 percent TW/effective full power
years (EFPY) growth since the previous inspection.

a. Provide a copy of Reference 6 from the RO32 Condition Monitoring and
Operational Assessment: “Disposition of Foreign Object(s) Remaining in
Robinson RSGs.”

b. Discuss for each of the four indications mentioned above that exhibited growth,
whether the measured growth is judged to result from eddy current measurement
uncertainty or additional wear from a loose part that did not produce a possible
loose part indication. Discuss why loose part wear is not expected to challenge
tube integrity during a 72 EFPY months inspection cycle.

RAI-3

Please provide insights as to why the array probe 95" percentile probability of detection for
circumferential ODSCC cracking in the tubesheet expansion zone is more favorable than for
axial ODSCC cracking. Is the probability of detection for axial cracks at the tubesheet
expansion zone more favorable than circumferential cracks when the cracks are smaller?

RAI-4

Page 2 of Attachment 3 in the license amendment request (LAR) states: “Recent (April 2021)
operating experience within the Duke Energy fleet at Catawba Nuclear Station, Unit 2
demonstrated that an inspection using enhanced probes did not identify additional crack like
indications.” The NRC staff interprets this statement to mean that the use of the array probe, in
addition to the bobbin probe, does not necessarily mean that additional cracks will be detected.
Please confirm if the NRC staff’'s understanding is correct and discuss the relative crack
detection capability of the array probe as compared to the bobbin only probe.





RAI-5

The NRC staff noted in the supplemental letter dated January 6, 2022 potential typographical
errors. Please assess and correct any typographical errors in the following items:

a. Table 2-3, the indication location (01C +51.21) shown for Tube R6 C76 in SGC.

b. Section 4.1, Anti-Vibration Bars Wear maximum growth occurred at multiple
indications, which exhibited growth of 2.0 percent TW, or 0.91 percent TW/EFPY.

c. Section 4.5 inspection interval of 4.0 EFPY covering three cycles of operation to
RO34

d. Section 4.5.1, the performance criteria was also met for a total duration of 4.0
EFPY until RO24.

e. Section 4.5.2, therefore, circumferential ODSCC, at the hot expansion transition
meets the OA performance criteria for structural and leakage integrity for two and
three full cycles of operation.

f. Section 4.5.3, The performance criteria was also met for a total duration of 4.0
EFPY until RO24.

g. Section 4.5.3, in the paragraph following Table 4-4, the POL of 0.936%
corresponds to three cycles.

RAI-6

The LAR description of TS 5.5.9.d introductory paragraph does not appear to align with the
current TS description. For example, the LAR version of the last sentence in TS 5.5.9.d
introductory paragraph, states, “An degradation assessment...” whereas the current TS states,
“A degradation assessment...” (emphasis added). This change was not identified as a
variation and appears to be a typographical error that was introduced when preparing LAR
Attachments 1 (proposed TS changes) and 2 (revised TS pages). Please assess and correct
any typographical errors.

RAI-7

TS 5.5.9.d would be revised by adding a phrase regarding portions of the tube that are exempt
from inspection by alternate repair criteria (see LAR Attachment 1, INSERT 1). However, LAR
INSERT 1 appears to contain additional punctuation (unnecessary comma between “outlet” and
“except’) that is not consistent with TSTF-577. Please assess and correct any typographical
errors.

RAI-8

TS 5.5.9.d.3 would be revised by adding a phrase regarding portions of the tube that are
exempt from inspection by alternate repair criteria that replaces the phrase “not excluded
above” (see LAR Attachment 1, INSERT 3). However, LAR INSERT 3 appears to contain
additional punctuation (unnecessary comma between “tube” and “excluding”) that is not
consistent with TSTF-577. Please assess and correct any typographical errors.






